
WASHINGTON STATE 
GAMBLING COMMISSION PUBLIC 

MEETING - January 2019

Hampton Inn & Suites
4301 Martin Way E.
Olympia, WA 98516



COMMISSIONERS

EX OFFICIOS

STAFF

Bud Sizemore
Chair

Julia Patterson
Vice Chair

Alicia LevyEd Troyer Chris Stearns

Senator
Steve Conway

Senator
Lynda Wilson

Representative
David Sawyer

Representative
Brandon Vick

David Trujillo
Director



  
STATE OF WASHINGTON  

GAMBLING COMMISSION  
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest”   
                                 Hampton Inn and Suites 

4301 Martin Way E.  Olympia, WA 98516 
January 10, 2019 

Please note, agenda times are estimates only.  Items may be taken out of sequence at the discretion of the Chair. 
Administrative Procedures Act Proceedings are identified by an asterisk (*)  

  
PUBLIC MEETING  

9:30 AM  Executive Session  -  Closed to the Public  
Discuss Pending Investigations, Tribal Negotiations, and Litigation  
The public meeting will reconvene at approximately 12:00 pm  

12:00 PM  
  
  
  
  

Tab 1  
  
  

Call to Order  
Welcome and Introductions Bud Sizemore, Chair  

• Moment of Silence 
Consent Agenda 

• Minutes November 15, 2018 (Action) 
• New Licenses and Class III Employees* (Action)  

Class III Employees/Snoqualmie & Cowlitz Tribes* (Action)  
Director’s Report David Trujillo, Director 
Staff Recognition – Cathee Gottfryd 35 year award 

Tab 2 Petition for Review - Potential Closed Session*                                                 
Numerica Credit Union, Case No. CR 2018-00200 

Chad Standifer, Assistant Attorney General 
                 Shelley Ripley, Attorney for Applicant  

Tab 3  Presentation - Seattle Jr. Hockey Greg Allen, Special Agent 
 Ric Newgard, Executive Director Seattle Jr. Hockey Association 

Tab 4 Presentation - G2E 
Cathy Harvey, Agent in Charge 

Jamie Aldridge, IT Specialist 
Brian Considine, Legal and Legislative Manager 

Tab 5 
  
  

Defaults *                                                                                                                                       (Action)  
• Roeun Chan, Public Card Room Employee revocation, CR 2018-01094 
• Gonzo’s LLC d/b/a Gonzo’s, Punchboard/Pull-Tab revocation, CR 2018-00871 
• Chang S. Kim, Class III Employee Certification revocation, CR 2018-01376   
• Lia B. Vanderpol, Public Card Room Employee revocation, CR 2018-00821 

Haylee Mills, Staff Attorney             
Tab 6 

  
RULE UP FOR DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE FILING  
Petition for Trade Show Rules* (Action) 

Brian Considine, Legal and Legislative Manager 
Ashlie Laydon, Rules Coordinator 

Tab 7 2019 Legislative Update 
• Agency Request Legislation Brian Considine, Legal and Legislative Manager 

  Public Comment 
Meeting Adjourn  

Upon advance request, the Commission will pursue reasonable accommodations to enable persons with disabilities to attend 
Commission meetings. Questions or comments pertaining to the agenda and requests for special accommodations should be 
directed to Julie Anderson, Executive Assistant at (360) 486-3453 or TDD (360) 486-3637. Questions or comments pertaining to 
rule changes should be directed to the Rules Coordinator (360) 486-3473.  

Please silence your cell phones for the public meeting 



 

 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest”  

1 
 

November Gambling Commission Meeting Minutes 
Hampton Inn & Suites 4301 Martin Way E. Olympia 

Public Meeting  
November 15, 2018 

 
Commissioners Present:                                      
Bud Sizemore, Chair 
Julia Patterson, Vice Chair  
Chris Stearns 
Ed Troyer 
Alicia Levy (Via Phone) 

Ex Officio Members Present:  
Senator Steve Conway 
 

 
Staff Present: 
David Trujillo, Executive Director; Tina Griffin, Assistant Director; Brian Considine, Legal and 
Legislative Manager; Julie Lies, Tribal Liaison; Julie Anderson, Executive Assistant; and 
Suzanne Becker, Assistant Attorney General.  
 
Public Meeting Call to Order 
Chair Bud Sizemore called the Gambling Commission meeting to order at 11:10 a.m. and 
immediately went into Executive Session where the Commissioners will discuss litigation, 
pending investigations and tribal negotiations for approximately one hour. Closed session is 
dedicated to discussing summary suspension and/or the petition for a declaratory order. 
Estimated time for the public meeting to start will be 1:00 PM.  
 
At 1:00 p.m., Chair Sizemore welcomed everyone to the Hampton Inn & Suites and 
introductions were made.   
 
Commissioner Levy joined the meeting via phone. There were 30 people in attendance.    

Chair Sizemore announced a slight modification to the agenda starting with Tab 2 so that Senator 
Conway would be present for the Nooksack presentation and vote before he had to leave.  
 
Tab 2 
Nooksack Indian Tribe Negotiation 
The Honorable Ross Cline Sr. of the Nooksack Indian Tribe, Director Dave Trujillo, and Tribal 
Liaison Julie Lies presented the materials for this tab. Chair Sizemore introduced the members 
of the Nooksack Indian Tribe who were present. Director Trujillo introduced Chairman Cline 
and spoke about the Nooksack compact negotiation process. Chairman Cline spoke about the 
history of the Nooksack Indian Tribe. He stated that the Northwood Casino opened 14 years ago 
on trust land owned by the tribe and that it is part of the 23 trust lands administered by the 
federal government. The Nooksack Indian Tribe signed its Class III gaming compact in October 
1991, and operated the Nooksack River Casino from April 1993 to December 2015. The 
Nooksack Indian Tribe has operated a Class III facility for 22 years. The amendment revises 
language in the compact to better align it with other tribes’ compacts. This amendment also adds 



2 
 

some responsible gaming program language, as well as some additional problem gambling 
funding. Included in the amendment is community contribution language, consistent with other 
compacts. Tribal Liaison Lies spoke about the specific negotiated amendments.  Senator 
Conway asked Chairman Cline how many tribal members there are currently in the Nooksack 
Indian Tribe. Chairman Cline answered that there are 1,870 members to date.  Commissioner 
Stearns and Commissioner Patterson congratulated Chairman Cline and thanked him for 
everything the tribe has accomplished so far. Tribal Liaison Lies commented that staff 
recommends that the commission forward the proposed compact to the governor for review and 
final execution.  

Chair Sizemore asked for public comment. There was no public comment.  
 
Commissioner Troyer moved to forward the proposed compact to the governor for review and 
final execution.  
Commissioner Stearns seconded the motion.  
The motion passed. 6:0.  
This vote included Senator Conway and Commissioner Levy (via phone).  
 
At this time Chair Sizemore asked for a moment of silence to recognize law enforcement 
officers across the country that were lost in the line of duty since we last met. 
 
Tab 1 
Consent Agenda: 
Commissioner Patterson moved to approve the new licenses and Class III employee licensees 
as presented by staff. 
Commissioner Stearns seconded the motion.  
The motion passed. 5:0  
 
Commissioner Patterson moved to approve the Class III certifications for the Snoqualmie and 
Cowlitz tribes. 
Commissioner Troyer seconded the motion.  
The motion passed. 4:0 
Commissioner Stearns abstained. 
  
Director’s Report   
Director Trujillo announced that on Oct. 30, Governor Jay Inslee signed a proclamation that 
November is Native American Heritage Month and Nov. 23 is Native American Heritage Day. 
He also announced that the latest tribal relations policy for the Gambling Commission was 
finished after working together with tribal leaders for a year on language, and the policy is now 
ready for signatures. Director Trujillo invited commissioners and staff, along with tribal 
members in attendance at the meeting, to be included in a photograph. Commissioner Stearns 
commented on the importance of National Native American Heritage Month. He says that this is 
a chance for the state and for the commission to celebrate the achievements, the culture, the 
traditions, the diversity, and all the gifts that the tribes and Native American people bring to the 
state of Washington. He stated that there are 138,000 Native Americans in Washington. 



3 
 

Chair Sizemore introduced Assistant Director (AD) Tina Griffin to report on the house-banked 
card room financial statements. AD Griffin stated that each year, the house-banked card rooms, 
by rule, must submit to the Gambling Commission their financial statements within 120 days 
after the end of their business year. They can choose their business year. A majority of them 
have year-end of Dec. 31. They can ask for a 60-day extension. So, typically, we receive a 
majority of the financial statements on June 30. For the last few months, we've been reviewing 
those and compiling them. The financial statements are set out by rule. They have to be either 
compiled, audited or reviewed, based on the gross receipts. If they report gross gambling receipts 
of less than one million dollars, they can do a compiled report. If they report gross gambling 
receipts of $1 million to $6 million that is a reviewed statement. If it's over $6 million, they have 
to submit an audited statement. AD Griffin provided a summary of the financial statements 
received for 2017. Commissioner Patterson asked if the licensed card room downturn was as a 
result of the recession. AD Griffin concurred; however she also added that it could be because of 
the no-smoking rule in public buildings, the Legislature voted on. AD Griffin asked for further 
clarification from the licensed operators in the audience. There was no comment at this time.  
 
Chair Sizemore introduced Legal and Legislative Manager (LLM) Brian Considine to provide 
the commission with the latest sports betting update. LLM Considine reported that there is a 
work session scheduled for Nov. 16, 2018 at 1:30 p.m. in the House Commerce and Gaming 
Committee, which will include a discussion on sports gambling. The Liquor and Cannabis Board 
will report first, followed by a panel from the Gambling Commission consisting of 
Commissioner Stearns, Director Trujillo and LLM Considine. LLM Considine mentioned that 
the Gambling Commission’s agency request legislation has not been approved yet. When agency 
request legislation is approved.  Appointments with House and Senate will then be scheduled. He 
reported that the problem gambling study is moving along and expects to have the results within 
the month. This study will be presented to the Legislature in February 2019.  
Commissioner Patterson asked for clarification on the agency request legislation.  LLM 
Considine reminded Commissioner Patterson of the self-exclusion bill and reviewed the timeline 
for the problem gambling study, and explained what he would be presenting at the January 
commission meeting.  
  
Tab 3 
Presentations- NIGA and Four Directions Conferences 
Commissioner Stearns spoke about his attendance at the National Indian Gaming Association 
mid-year conference in September at the Pechanga Casino and Resort in Southern California.  
He moderated a panel on regulating sports betting as well as emerging gaming.  He also spoke at 
the Four Directions Conference with Professor and Director Bo Bernhard. Commissioner 
Patterson thanked Commissioner Stearns for actively participating in the conferences. She 
spoke about attending the G2E conference in Las Vegas for the first time and says she learned a 
lot. Chair Sizemore reiterated that G2E is a conference that Gambling Commission staff attend 
and work the whole time they are there. He says that it’s not inexpensive to attend, but he feels 
that, as a commissioner, it is a very valuable investment by the commission and there's a ton of 
great education. He also said that, in his opinion, the staff is able to make great contacts and get a 
lot of good work done. 
 



4 
 

Tab 4 
Presentation-Special Olympics of Washington 
Assistant Director Tina Griffin introduced Special Agent Donna Khanhasa and Dave Lenox, 
the chief executive officer of Special Olympics. Special Agent (SA) Khanhasa presented results 
of the independent audit report for the raffle that the commission approved at the November 
2017 commission meeting. SA Khanhasa stated that this is the sixth raffle Special Olympics has 
held since it was authorized by the Legislature in 2013. The grand prize offered was a home 
located in the Puget Sound area, an annuity of $4 million paid over 20 years, or a one-time $2.8 
million cash payment; it was based on 65,000 tickets sold. Mr. Lenox explained some of the 
work done by Special Olympics to ensure that the athletes can compete. He mentioned that 
Special Olympics has added events, such as: stand up paddle boarding, flag football, gymnastics 
and equestrian. He also mentioned that infrastructure growth is a big priority for Special 
Olympics. Chair Sizemore asked what the impact would be to the organization if it were to lose 
a year of revenue.  Mr. Lenox explained that there would be a reduction of staff and services to 
the athletes and the community. Commissioner Stearns thanked Mr. Lenox for the work being 
done by Special Olympics and asked about the USA Special Olympics Games that were held in 
Seattle this year. Mr. Lenox commented that ESPN and ABC broadcast opening ceremonies 
live. ESPN did nightly one-hour shows recapping the games. He said that it really brought good 
awareness to Special Olympics, and it showed the rest of the world how welcoming people are 
here in Washington. He stated that there was a need for at least 10,000 volunteers to run the 
games and 15,000 signed up. SA Khanhasa announced that the Special Olympics of Washington 
is here to request permission to conduct a Dream House Raffle (enhanced raffle) in western 
Washington in 2019. Mr. Lenox stated the organization's goal is to triple the number of athletes 
by 2020 and in the years ahead, and to reach everyone with intellectual disabilities. The grand 
prize that is going to be offered is a house valued at $4.8 million, a $4 million annuity, or $2.8 
million one-time cash option. The Special Olympics estimates that the break-even number of 
tickets to be sold is 17,391 tickets, and the net proceeds will obviously depend on the grand prize 
that's awarded. They estimate that the net proceeds could be up to $2 million if a $4.8 million 
house is the grand prize. At this time, commission staff recommends approval of the 2019 
enhanced raffle plan. 
Commissioner Troyer was interested to know about the consulting firm currently used by 
Special Olympics and asked if organizers considered bringing that work in-house so that a larger 
portion of the proceeds stays with Special Olympics. Mr. Lenox said they have had discussions 
with the consulting firm about that, and asked the firm if the work could be done in-house.. He 
said that they are doing an analysis of how direct marketing works and that being able to refine 
the marketing is important.  
 
Commissioner Stearns moved to approve the Western Washington Special Olympics 2019 
enhanced raffle request as presented by staff. 
Commissioner Troyer seconded the motion.  
The motion passed. 5:0 
 
Tab 5 
Default                                                                                  
Staff Attorney (SA) Haylee Mills presented the default materials: 



5 
 

Joey D. Neal, CR 2018-00475 Public card room employee revocation. 
SA Mills reported that based on past criminal conduct and failure to disclose the conduct, 
Director Trujillo issued a notice of administrative charges on July 17, 2018. The licensee failed 
to attend a pre-hearing conference in the case and has therefore waived his right to a hearing in 
the case. As licensee cannot show by clear and convincing evidence that he's qualified to keep 
his gambling license, staff recommended that commissioners sign the proposed final order and 
revoke Mr. Neal's public card room employee license, number 68-34678.  
Commissioner Stearns asked about the underlying offense. SA Mills indicated that the licensee 
is not challenging the revocation, and the underlying offense was a felony theft conviction. 
Chair Sizemore asked if Joey D. Neal was in attendance. He was not.   

Commissioner Troyer moved to revoke the public card room employee license from Joey D. 
Neal. 
Commissioner Levy seconded the motion.  
The motion passed. 5:0 
 
After the vote was seconded, SA Mills announced that the theft against Joey D. Neal involved 
the taking of a purse, which contained financial transaction cards and cash, from an employee of 
an Elks Lodge. 
 
James K. Reese, CR 2018-00845 Class III certification revocation.   
SA Mills presented the information for this case and, based on criminal conduct by Mr. Reese, 
Director Trujillo issued a notice of charges on Sept. 11, 2018. By failing to respond to the 
charges or request a hearing in this case, the licensee has waived his right to a hearing. As 
licensee cannot show by clear and convincing evidence that he's qualified to keep his gambling 
certification, staff recommends that commissioners sign the proposed final order and revoke Mr. 
Reese's Class III employee certification, number 69-38122.  Commissioner Patterson inquired 
on the process in which staff of the Gambling Commission contacts the individuals to let them 
know how serious their charges are. Director Trujillo explained that the guidelines are on the 
license applications. Commissioner Stearns asked if Mr. Reese’s felony would be reduced to a 
misdemeanor if he completed a diversion program. Director Trujillo concurred. Chair 
Sizemore asked if Mr. James K. Reese was in the audience. He was not present.   

Commissioner Patterson moved to revoke the Class III certification for James K. Reese. 
Commissioner Troyer seconded the motion.  
The motion passed. 5:0 
 
The commission took a 15-minute break. 
 
Tab 6 
Petition for Rule Change: Soft Count 
Assistant Director Tina Griffin presented the materials for this tab. This rule petition was 
submitted originally by Stacey Hess of Great American Gaming. GAG operates four house-
banked card rooms in Washington. The petitioner submitted the rule earlier in the year. Mr. 
Ziegler of Emerald Downs sent an email in support of the petition. Mr. Mena spoke in support of 
the new rule language and indicated that his properties would save $1,000 in payroll. No other 



6 
 

comments have been received. Ms. Hess is here to answer any questions, and staff recommends 
final action with an effective date of Jan. 1, 2019. Chair Sizemore asked for public comment. 
There was no public comment.   
 
Commissioner Troyer moved to file the petition for final action as presented by staff. 
Commissioner Stearns seconded the motion.  
The motion passed. 5:0 
 
Tab 7 
Rotary Club of Everett 
Assistant Director Tina Griffin presented the materials for this tab. The Rotary Club of 
Everett-Port Gardner has submitted a request to offer a raffle prize in excess of $40,000. By rule, 
this requires submission of the raffle plan and commissioner approval prior to offering that raffle 
prize. The Rotary Club has submitted the plan and it outlines the information required by rule. 
Staff recommends approval of the request to offer a raffle prize in excess of $40,000. 
Representatives from the Rotary Club were available for questions. Commissioner Troyer 
asked if the limit request is a one-time ask or if the rotary is planning to make it permanent. Mr. 
Scott Eastham, representative for the Rotary Club, replied that he would like to make it 
permanent.   
 
Commissioner Patterson moved to approve the request to exceed the $40,000 raffle prize limit 
as presented by staff. 
Commissioner Stearns seconded the motion.  
The motion passed. 5:0 
 
Tab 8 
Petition for Review: Motion for Reconsideration   
Legal and Legislative Manager (LLM) Brian Considine presented the materials for this tab. 
LLM Considine explained that this presentation is regarding Yen Trinh, case numbers 2016-
01284 and 2016-01569, and Dung Huynh, case numbers 2016-01285 and 2016-01570.On March 
8, 2016, Director Trujillo issued charges for both licensees.. Both individuals had a joint hearing 
before the administrative law judge on Jan. 23-24, 2018. The initial order was issued by the 
judge on May 7t, 2018. The licensees filed a petition for review, which was heard at our public 
meeting on Sept. 14, 2018 in Spokane. Both of their attorneys, as well as our assistant attorney 
general, Mr. Rosen, presented arguments before the commissioners. At the time, the 
commissioners affirmed and upheld the administrative violations and the revocation of both o 
licenses. An order to that effect was mailed to the licensees on Sept. 20, 2018. The licensees filed 
a motion for reconsideration, which was received by staff on Oct. 1, 2018. This is the first 
opportunity to bring it before the commissioners for consideration. Lastly, the Gambling 
Commission has a rule that relates to reconsideration, but it basically just mirrors the 
Administrative Procedure Act RCW 34.05.470 for reconsideration. Commissioners have the 
ability to deny or grant the petition, and either dissolve or modify the final order which the 
commission issued in October or September, or grant the petition and set the matter for further 
hearing.  
 
Chair Sizemore asked that the room be cleared so the Commission could go into closed session.  



7 
 

The meeting reconvened after a 10-minute closed session.  
 
Chair Sizemore reconvened the meeting and stated that, as the presiding officer in this matter, 
the petition for reconsideration by Dung Huynh is denied. The petition for reconsideration by 
Yen Trinh is partially granted. The commission is affirming the violation, but modifying the 
sanction to a six-month suspension, effective upon filing of the modified order. Our AAG is 
going to be putting that together. Commissioner Patterson stated for the record that she did not 
agree with the prevailing position to modify the sanction from a revocation to a six-month 
suspension. 
 
Chair Sizemore asked for public comment.  
 
Victor Mena, chief operating officer for Washington Gold Casinos and president of the 
Recreational Gaming Association, addressed the commission. He said that he wanted to make a 
couple comments in regards to the original financial reports that were given to commissioners 
earlier today: “There were some questions regarding, basically, the bar graph showing the rise 
and then the dip through the recession and then the flattening in the last several years. In my 
opinion, it looking at a very mature market. We're seeing product that has been established for 
the last 20 years in the market. The card rooms have flattened out as far as by numbers based on, 
I think, the volume, the velocity of what that product generates. The reason you're not seeing a 
lot of growth is because that established market isn't growing per se. The product that is growing 
in the market is going to tend to be more of a newer type of gaming product. Could be, 
obviously, electronic video. Those types of products are going to create growth in any gaming 
industry but I do believe that you're starting to see also the impacts of wage. For instance, in 
2016, it showed there was less card rooms in the red than 2017. 2017 was the first year of the 
$1.50 hit impact, taking our minimum wage up that dramatic bump. We're in the second year of 
the ¢50 bump and then the coming year is another ¢50 cent bump, but at 2020, it'll go to the 
$1.50. You're going to see that red figure probably increase as far as the number of card rooms 
and that's because, like I said, there just isn't any new product introduced to be able to sustain 
that.” 
Commissioner Stearns asked Mr. Mena if there is an issue with player retention. Does Mr. 
Mena see the demographics changing and are player acquisition costs higher? 
Mr. Mena commented: “In this market, I would say player acquisition costs are extremely high. 
You've got a very competitive market set, which creates a lot of promotional spend for the player 
per capita, which is probably greatly higher than what you see in any other jurisdiction. But that's 
because the card room industry only has 15 tables, it only has cards, where a traditional casino 
that has multiple products, multiple items, for a broader range of the populace brings in a higher 
ratio of the public. Honestly speaking, I think the card rooms are 7% of the gambling public, and 
so the demographics isn't changing; if anything, it's getting older. Our employees are getting 
older. It's very fascinating, I started back in 2001, and we had a lot of youngsters back then that 
were wanting to be dealers, people between 21 and 30. And today, the employment labor pool is 
so challenged, and it's challenged for multiple reasons, but we can't find 20-somethings that want 
to do this job any longer. Now that's not a product of the game or gambling in general, that's a 
product of socioeconomics, as far as the public goes, because these are people that no longer 
want to deal with interaction. The interaction that the public has is very limited, especially at that 
age, they're living with a cell phone society, and they’d never had to have person-to-person 
conversations any longer. And so you're seeing a whole generation of people that have a 
challenge interacting socially with guests. Restaurants are much challenged, there's no servers to 



8 
 

find, there's no dealers to find, because once somebody has that challenge of confrontation, they 
tend to just quit. So it's interesting, the employee base is getting older, the customer base is 
getting older, and so that's why you're seeing Commissioner Patterson's question, ‘why isn't there 
this up uptick with the economy?’ It's because it’s a maturing business.” 
Chair Sizemore thanked Mr. Mena for his comments and called for the next person to address 
the commission. 
 
A gentleman from the audience addressed the commission and was reluctant to give his name. 
After some insistence by Chair Sizemore, the gentleman stated his name as Mr. Todd Ruzicka 
[sp?] Mr. Ruzicka thanked the commission for hearing his question. He asked about current 
events at the Puyallup Indian Tribe's Emerald Queen Casino. Commissioner Troyer stated that 
he recognized the reporter Mr. Ruzicka was sitting next to during the meeting and asked him if 
he was acting as a media agent. Mr. Ruzicka said no. Commissioner Troyer responded to Mr. 
Ruzicka’ s original question and stated that the Gambling Commission is a limited-jurisdiction 
law enforcement agency and, as such, investigates those types of accusations all the time. 
Commissioner Troyer stated that criminal cases investigated across the state by the Gambling 
Commission are prosecuted in the same manner as any other law enforcement agency. Until any 
investigation is concluded, the Gambling Commission would have no comment. Mr. Ruzicka 
thanked the commission for their time and left the meeting. 
 
Other Business/General Discussion/Public Comment 
Chair Sizemore called for any further comment. There was no further comment. Chair Sizemore 
reminded the audience that the next commission meeting will be Jan. 10, 2019 at the Hampton 
Inn and Suites in Olympia.   
 
The Commission meeting adjourned at 3:35 p.m. 
 

































































 

 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest” 

 
 
TO:          COMMISSIONERS    EX OFFICIO MEMBERS  
         Bud Sizemore, Chair     Senator Steve Conway  
  Julia Patterson, Vice-Chair    Senator Lynda Wilson 
   Christopher Stearns    Representative Brandon Vick 
   Ed Troyer      
   Alicia Levy 
      
FROM:        Brian J. Considine, Legal and Legislative Manager  
 
SUBJECT:  Sports Gambling Monthly Update – January 2019 
 
This memo continues my sports gambling updates submitted to you since June 2018. Below is an 
updated sports gambling summary for our January 10, 2019 Commission Meeting:   
 
Congress 
 
Senators Orin Hatch (R-UT) and Chuck Schumur (D-NY) filed a federal sports gambling bill on 
December 19, 2018.  Based on a draft bill that was publicly circulated prior to the bill being 
filed, the more relevant parts of the bill are: (1) Amends Wire Act to allow some information to 
cross state lines; (2) Requires the U.S. Attorney General to approve a state’s regulatory system; 
(3) Mandates operators use official league data through 2024; (4) Creates a national sports 
wagering clearinghouse that operators must send real time wagering information to; (5) 
Authorizes interstate sports gambling compacts; (6) prohibits persons younger than 21 from 
participating in sports gambling; and (7) Establishes minimum problem gambling 
requirements/standards, including establishing a percentage of revenue that will go towards 
gambling disorder treatment and responsible gambling education. 
 
It is unclear if this bill will gain any traction in Congress.  However, Senator Schumur has 
publicly stated he is committed to pursuing this bill.  
 
 
Sports Leagues 
 
Professional sports leagues continue to lobby state legislators for integrity or royalty fees and 
control over the sharing of their statistics and data.  Integrity/royalty fees and data rights have 
been included, or discussed to be include, in draft bills filed recently in Washington, D.C.; 
Missouri; and Michigan.  Additionally, the NFL and NCAA publicly gave support for the federal 
sports gambling bill discussed above. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Sports Gambling Monthly Update to Commissioners 
January 2019 
Page 2 
 
 
States 
 
Delaware, Mississippi, New Jersey, Nevada, West Virginia, Rhode Island and Pennsylvania 
currently offer varying opportunities for legal sports gambling within their state casinos and/or 
horse racetracks. In November, Arkansas passed a statewide initiative to authorize all gambling 
in certain parts of the state, including sports gambling.  In December, Washington D.C. passed 
legislation authorizing sports gambling in the nation’s capital.  The bill must now be signed by 
the mayor and pass review of Congress. 
 
Additional states being mentioned as the “next wave” of states that will likely consider 
authorizing sports gambling during their next legislative session are: Connecticut, Kentucky, 
Illinois, Indiana, Iowa, Ohio, Michigan, Minnesota, Missouri, Tennessee, and Virginia.   
 
Here is an update for the states where sports gambling is currently legal:  
 

Delaware – Sports gambling started in the state on June 5, 2018.  The state Lottery is 
the primary regulator.  Sports gambling is only offered at three land-based racetracks 
and casinos, and these are joint operations by the state through a vendor.  The 
allocation of net revenues are 12.5% to the vendors (Scientific Games, William Hill, 
and StadiumTech) and the remaining 87.5% of net revenues are allocated 50% to the 
state, 40% to the racetrack/casinos, and 10% to horse racing purses.  June through 
October 2018, there was approximately $70.9 million in wagers and $6.77 million in 
revenues, with approximately $3.38 million in state revenue.  

 
New Jersey – Sports gambling started in the state on June 14, 2018.  The Casino 
Control Commission is the primary licensing authority and Attorney General’s 
Division of Gaming Enforcement is the primary regulator.  There are currently nine 
land-based (previous memos had an error stating 12) and eight online operators 
offering sports gambling. Its land-based gross revenues are taxed at 9.75% and 
mobile and online revenues are taxed at 13%.  June through November, there was 
approximately $926 million wagered, including approximately $330 million in 
November, $63.84 million in gross revenues, and $6.94 million in state tax revenue.  
Of note, 72% of wagers in November were placed online. 
 
Mississippi – Sports gambling started in the state on August 1, 2018.  The Gaming 
Commission is primary regulator, and gross revenues are taxed at 12%. Sports 
gambling is land-based only and mobile gambling is only allowed on the operator’s 
property.  However, no mobile gaming is available yet.  Only 20 of the 28 state 
casinos currently offered sports gambling. August through November, there was 
approximately $116.78 million in wagers for approximately $9 million in gross 
revenues, and $1.08 million in state tax revenue.   
 
West Virginia – Sports gambling started in the state on September 1, 2018.  The state 
Lottery is the primary regulator for that state’s five licensed race racetrack/casinos, 
and gross revenues are taxed at 10%. It also allows sports gambling to occur through 
mobile and internet platforms. In September and October, there was approximately 
$22.4 million in wagers for approximately $2.7 million in gross revenues, $273,000 
in state tax revenue. 



Sports Gambling Monthly Update to Commissioners 
January 2019 
Page 3 
 
 
 

Pennsylvania – The Gaming Control Board is the primary regulator and sports 
gambling can occur at the state’s twelve licensed commercial casinos and through 
mobile and internet platforms. There is a $10 million licensing fee and gross revenues 
will be taxed at 36%. There are five approved operators for sports gambling at six 
locations.  Three locations opened in December with additional locations expected to 
open in January.  
 
Rhode Island – The state lottery is the primary regulator and operator. It will operate 
the sports gambling through two commercial casinos.  The allocation of net revenues 
are 51% to the state; 32% to the Vendor (IGT); and 17 % to the casino. The state 
began operation in December at the two authorized locations in the state. 
 
Nevada – The Gaming Control Board is the primary regulator Gross revenues are 
taxed at 6.75% and sports gambling can occur at the state’s approximately 190 
licensed locations and through mobile and internet platforms. Nevada reported for 
November that there were approximately $592 million in wagers, $27 million in gross 
revenues, and $1.82 million in taxes.   

 
Tribal Governments 
 
Currently, there are two Tribes outside of Nevada offering sports gambling at their operations–
Choctaw in Mississippi and Pueblo of Santa Ana in New Mexico. It is expected that several 
Tribal gaming states, including Connecticut, Oklahoma, Michigan, Minnesota, and New York, 
will look to authorize sports gambling in 2019. 
 
Commercial Operators 
 
There continues to be rapid growth of commercial partnerships between commercial casinos and 
professional sports leagues and/or teams.  Additionally, it is expected that commercial operators 
will continue to move at a frenetic pace to grow their market share and products available to the 
sports gambling public in the months ahead, especially online operators in New Jersey and 
Pennsylvania, and West Virginia. 
 



 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 

“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest” 
 

 

December 28, 2018 

 

 

TO:  COMMISSIONERS:  

  Bud Sizemore, Chair 

  Julia Patterson, Vice Chair 

Christopher Stearns 

Ed Troyer 

Alicia Levy 

 

FROM: Brian J. Considine, Legal and Legislative Manager  

  Legal and Records Division 

 

SUBJECT:  Numerica Credit Union – CR 2018-00200 

  Petition for Review Materials – January 10, 2019 Commission Meeting 

 
 
In the above-referenced case, Gambling Commission staff filed a Petition for Review challenging 
an Administrative Law Judge’s Initial Order granting summary judgment to Numerica in regards 
to their denial of license case.  Enclosed in the Commission Meeting packet are: (1) the Initial 
Order; (2) Petition for Review; (3) Response to the Petition for Review; and (4) Chair’s Order 
Granting Motion for Extension of Time and Setting the Petition for Review Briefing Schedule.   
 
You will each receive an email with the complete case file, including transcripts of administrative 
proceedings, by January 2, 2019.  We have also provided these materials to our Assistant Attorneys 
General and Counsel for Numerica Credit Union.  Please review these materials prior to the 
January Commission Meeting and direct any questions you may have about this case to AAG 
Suzanne Becker.   
 



 

 

Numerica Credit Union, Case No. 2018-00200 

 

Initial Order 























 

 

Numerica Credit Union, Case No. 2018-00200 

 

Petition for Review 



















 

 

Numerica Credit Union, Case No. 2018-00200 

 

Response to Petition for Review 























 

 

Numerica Credit Union, Case No. 2018-00200 

 

Order Granting Motion for  

Extension of Time 









Washington State Gambling Commission
Program Review

Seattle Junior Hockey Association

Part I

Licensing/Organ ization I nformation
For FiscalYear Ended
June 30,2A17

Name/Address
Seattle Junior Hockey Association
7016 22Ath St SW
Mountlake Terrace, WA 98043

MEMBERSHIP AND MANAGEMENT

42 Active voting members
3 Officers and 9 Board members
4 quarterly Board meetings were conducled during the 201612017 fiscal year
1 General membership meeting was held during the201612017 fiscal year
Board member election was held on June 12,2018

ACTIVE LICENSES ISSUED BY GAMBLING COMMISSION
Description/Class
Class I Bingo
Class E Raffle
Class A Amusement Game
Class L Non-profit pull tab

Exp. Date
12t31t2A18
12t31t2018
12t31t2018
12t31t2018

License Number(s)
01-01670
02-00875
03-00801
05-02334

Organizational Purpose and Structure

Statement of Purpose

Seattle Junior Hockey Association is an organization that provides all aspects of youth hockey
from "Learn to Skate" to the highest level of amateur hockey. The organization serves youth
participants in the Seattle area from ages 4-18.

The stated purpose of the organization is to promote growth of youth amateur hockey, which
includes teaching physical skills, fair play, discipline, respect for authority and competitiveness.
This objective is to be reached by putting the highest caliber of coaching staff available to service
their members.

Gha ritable/Nonprofi t Services

During 2A17 Seattle Junior Hockey Association expended over $886,875.00 for program services
and served 1106 youth participants in their hockey programs. The organization also provides
"scholarships" to cover the cost to participate in the youth hockey programs for under-privileged
youth in the greater Seattle area.

ln addition, Seattle Junior Hockey Association and the Seattle Skating Club continued a
partnership in the Washington lce Skating Association (WISA). The Lynnwood lce Center, located
in Lynnwood, is open to the public, and focuses on beginner levels of ice skating. The Olympic
View lce Arena, located in Mountlake Terrace, is a private rink focusing on the development of
hockey and figure skating. Both ice arenas continue to be successful in tne community.



Part ll
Staff Findings

During our review of Seattle Junior Hockey Association, numerous steps were taken to
ensure they are functioning in accordance with their Bylaws and continue to meet the
definition of a charitable or nonprofit organization under the RCW. This was done in part by
reviewing: board meeting minutes, program services, financial statements, internal
controls, and payroll for reasonable wages, the use of funds and assets and contracts for
reasonableness. We verified their programs exist and are being supported and they made
significant progress towards their stated purpose.

Based on our review we determined Seattle Junior Hockey Association was in compliance
with all WACs and RCWs during their fiscal year ending June 3A,2017 and is suitable for
continued licensure.

Prepared By:
Greg Allen, Special Agent
Regulation Unit

Date: , t

rh*ltt



G2E 2018
January 10, 2019
Jamie Aldridge, Senior Testing Engineer 
Electronic Gambling Lab
Cathy Harvey, Agent in Charge
Tribal Gaming Unit
Brian Considine, Legal & Legislative Manager 
Legal & Records Unit



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 2

Preeminent show for gaming-entertainment industry
October 8 – 11

Sands Expo, Las Vegas
26,000+ attendees

450+ exhibitors
Keynotes, educational sessions, exhibit hall, stakeholder meetings

G2E: Global Gaming Expo

http://sharepoint/g2e/G2E%20Photos/g2e%20banner.PNG
http://sharepoint/g2e/G2E%20Photos/g2e%20banner.PNG


WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 3

Commissioners

Administration

Information Technology

Tribal Gaming

Licensing

Legal & Records

Electronic Gambling Lab

Commissioners & Staff Attended



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 4

Regulators Roundtable



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 5

Manufacturer Meetings



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 6

Mobile Gaming: The Next Big Thing for Indian Gaming

Changing the Game:  The Legal and Regulatory Impacts of a 
PASPA Repeal

The Challenges of Being a Sports Betting Operator in the U.S.

How States and Tribes are Preparing for Legal Sports Betting

Sports Betting: The Path Forward for Indian Country

Indian Gaming in 2018: Legislative and Policy Issues in the U.S.

How Sports Betting Works in a Regulated Market

Educational Sessions & Keynotes

http://sharepoint/g2e/G2E%20Photos/sports%20betting%20session.PNG
http://sharepoint/g2e/G2E%20Photos/sports%20betting%20session.PNG
http://sharepoint/g2e/G2E%20Photos/panelists.PNG
http://sharepoint/g2e/G2E%20Photos/panelists.PNG


WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 7

South Point Sports Book Tour

WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 7



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 8

Stakeholder Meetings



Questions?
Jamie Aldridge, Senior Testing Engineer 
Electronic Gambling Lab
Cathy Harvey, Agent in Charge
Tribal Gaming Unit
Brian Considine, Legal & Legislative Manager
Legal & Records Unit



 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest” 

 
 
January 2, 2019 
 
 
TO:  COMMISSIONERS:  
  Bud Sizemore, Chair 
  Julia Patterson, Vice Chair 

Christopher Stearns 
Ed Troyer 
Alicia Levy 

 
FROM: Haylee P. Mills, Staff Attorney  
  Legal and Records Division 

 
SUBJECT:  Roeun Chan, CR 2018-01094 
  Final Order – January 10, 2019 Commission Meeting 
 
Mr. Roeun Chan has a gambling license authorizing Public Card Room Employee activity at Great 
American Casino in Des Moines, Washington.  His license expires on May 22, 2019.   
 
On June 29, 2018, while working as a shift manager at Great American Casino, Mr. Chan 
conducted the final table card draw for a baccarat tournament.  On the above date, Mr. Chan 
conspired with a player in the tournament to defraud the casino by manipulating the shuffling of 
the cards to be drawn by players to ensure the player received the highest card cut and would 
qualify for the final round of the tournament.  Video surveillance showed the player whispering to 
Mr. Chan before the final table card draw, and then Mr. Chan manipulating the deck of cards to 
ensure that the Ace of Spades would be drawn by the player.  Surveillance also showed the player 
drawing the Ace of Spades, which qualified the player for the final round of the tournament.  Mr. 
Chan’s actions ensured that the player received some of the tournament prize money as all seats at 
the final tournament table were paid a portion of the prize.  Following the incident, Mr. Chan’s 
employment with Great American Casino was terminated. 
 
Director Trujillo issued Mr. Chan a Notice of Administrative Charges on November 14, 2018, by 
regular and certified mail to his last known address on file. Neither the regular nor certified mail 
was returned.  As of the date of this memo, the Commission has not received any response from 
Mr. Chan. 
 
Mr. Chan’s failure to respond to the charges or request a hearing is a waiver of Mr. Chan’s right 
to a hearing in Case No. CR 2018-01094.  You may take final action against his gambling license.  
Based on his conduct, Mr. Chan cannot show by clear and convincing evidence that he is qualified 
to keep his gambling license.  Therefore, staff recommends that the Commission sign the proposed 
final order and revoke Roeun Chan’s Public Card Room Employee license, Number 68-33520. 



 

FINAL ORDER OF THE 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 
 
IN RE:  ROEUN CHAN 
NO. 2018-01094 
 

1  
Washington State Gambling Commission 
4565 7th Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 98503 

P.O. Box 42400 
Olympia, WA 98504 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

STATE OF WASHINGTON 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 

 
In the Matter of: 
 
 
ROEUN CHAN, 
License No. 68-33520 
                    
 

 
Licensee. 

NO.  CR 2018-01094 
            
 
FINAL ORDER OF THE 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 
 

 This matter having come before the Washington State Gambling Commission 

(Commission) on January 10, 2019, the Commission makes the following Findings of Fact, 

Conclusions of Law, and issues its Final Order: 

I. FINDINGS OF FACT 

1. The Washington State Gambling Commission issued Roeun Chan License No.: 

68-33520, authorizing Public Card Room activity at Great American Casino in Des Moines, 

Washington. 

2. This license, which expires on May 22, 2019, was issued subject to Mr. Chan’s 

compliance with state gambling laws and Commission rules.  

3. On June 29, 2018, while working as a shift manager at Great American Casino, 

Mr. Chan conducted the final card draw for abaccarat tournament.   

4. On the above date, Mr. Chan conspired with a player in the tournament to defraud 

the casino by manipulating the shuffling of the cards to be drawn by players to ensure the player 

received the highest card cut and would qualify for the final round of the tournament. 



 

FINAL ORDER OF THE 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 
 
IN RE:  ROEUN CHAN 
NO. 2018-01094 
 

2  
Washington State Gambling Commission 
4565 7th Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 98503 

P.O. Box 42400 
Olympia, WA 98504 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

 

5. Video surveillance showed the player whispering to Mr. Chan before the final 

table card draw, and Mr. Chan manipulating the deck of cards to ensure that the Ace of Spades 

would be drawn by the player.   

6. Surveillance also showed the player drawing the Ace of Spades, qualifying him 

for the final round of the tournament.    

7. Mr. Chan’s actions ensured that the player received some of the tournament prize 

money as all seats at the final tournament table were paid a portion of the prize.  

8. Director David Trujillo issued administrative charges on November 9, 2018 

alleging that Mr. Chan’s actions constituted violations of RCW 9.46.190(1) and RCW 9.46.185.  

Further, that he could not show by clear and convincing evidence that he was qualified for 

licensure as required by RCW 9.46.153(1), and that his actions warranted revocation of his 

license pursuant to RCW 9.46.075(1), (2), and (8), and WAC 230-03-085(1), (3), (8), and (9)(a). 

9. Mr. Chan was sent the charges by regular and certified mail on November 14, 

2018 to the last address the Gambling Commission had on file.  Neither the regular nor the 

certified mail was returned.   

10. To date, the Commission has received no communication from Mr. Chan.  

II. CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

1. Mr. Roeun Chan received proper notice of the November 9, 2018 charges via 

regular and certified mail on November 14, 2018 pursuant to RCW 34.05.434, RCW 34.05.431, 

and WAC 10-08-130.   

2. The Commission can take final action against Mr. Chan’s gambling license under 

Case Number CR 2018-01094 pursuant to RCW 9.46.075, RCW 34.05.440(1), RCW 34.05.461, 

and WAC 230-03-085. 

3. Mr. Chan’s license should be revoked under Case Number CR 2018-01094 

pursuant to RCW 9.46.075, RCW 9.46.190(1), RCW 9.46.185, RCW 9.46.153(1), RCW 

34.05.440(1), RCW 34.05.461, and WAC 230-03-085. 



 

FINAL ORDER OF THE 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 
 
IN RE:  ROEUN CHAN 
NO. 2018-01094 
 

3  
Washington State Gambling Commission 
4565 7th Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 98503 

P.O. Box 42400 
Olympia, WA 98504 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

 

ORDER 

 This matter having come before the Commission at its January 10, 2019, Commission 

meeting, the Commissioners having heard arguments, been given the chance to review the 

administrative record, and being fully advised in this matter, now therefore: 

 It is hereby ORDERED that Roeun Chan’s gambling license, Number 68-33520, is 

REVOKED.  

 

DATED this _____ day of January, 2019. 
 
 
____________________________________ _________________________________ 
BUD SIZEMORE, Chair JULIA PATTERSON, Vice Chair 
 
 
____________________________________  __________________________________  
CHRISTOPHER STEARNS    ED TROYER 
 
 
____________________________________ 
ALICIA LEVY 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

FINAL ORDER OF THE 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 
 
IN RE:  ROEUN CHAN 
NO. 2018-01094 
 

4  
Washington State Gambling Commission 
4565 7th Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 98503 

P.O. Box 42400 
Olympia, WA 98504 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

 

NOTICE 
 

Reconsideration: RCW 34.05.470 and WAC 230-17-140 provide that a party may file a 

petition for reconsideration of a final order. A petition for reconsideration must be received no 

later than thirteen (13) days after the date this final order is mailed.  Any motion for 

reconsideration must state the specific grounds supporting the party’s request for 

reconsideration.  

Stay of Final Order: Filing for reconsideration does not stay the effectiveness of this 

Order. WAC 230-17-145 provides that a party may petition the Commission for a stay of a final 

order.  Any petition for a stay should be received by the Commission within thirteen (13) days 

after the date this final order is mailed. 

Judicial Review: RCW 34.05.542 provides that a party may appeal this final order by 

filing a petition for judicial review within thirty (30) days after service of this order.  A petition 

for judicial review must be filed with the appropriate superior court and served upon both the 

Commission and the Office of the Attorney General. 

Service: This Order was served on you three days after it was deposited in the United 

States Postal Service regular mail, excluding the date of mailing. WAC 230-17-035. 

Any motions or petitions for judicial review should be served on or mailed to: 

Washington State Gambling Commission                     Gregory J. Rosen 
Legal and Records Division                                           Attorney General’s Office 
4565 7th Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA                                 1135 Washington St. SE  
P.O. Box 42400                                                              P.O. Box 40100 
Olympia, WA 98504-2400                                             Olympia, WA 98504-0100 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

FINAL ORDER OF THE 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 
 
IN RE:  ROEUN CHAN 
NO. 2018-01094 
 

5  
Washington State Gambling Commission 
4565 7th Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 98503 

P.O. Box 42400 
Olympia, WA 98504 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

 I certify that on the date below I served a copy of the foregoing document on all parties 

and/or their counsel by United States Postal Service regular mail to the following: 
 
 
ROEUN CHAN 
16720 6TH AVE WEST D103 
LYNNWOOD WA  98037 

 EXECUTED this ___ day of January, 2019, at Lacey, Washington. 
 
 
             
      Haylee Mills 
      Staff Attorney 
 



 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest” 

 
 
January 2, 2019 
 
 
TO:  COMMISSIONERS:  
  Bud Sizemore, Chair 
  Julia Patterson, Vice Chair 

Christopher Stearns 
Ed Troyer 
Alicia Levy 

 
FROM: Haylee P. Mills, Staff Attorney  
  Legal and Records Division 

 
SUBJECT:  Gonzo’s LLC d/b/a Gonzo’s, CR 2018-00871 
  Final Order – January 10, 2019 Commission Meeting 
 
Gonzo’s LLC d/b/a Gonzo’s has a gambling license authorizing Punchboard/Pull-Tab activity in 
the State of Washington.  The license expires on September 30, 2019, and was issued subject to 
the Licensee’s, and its substantial interest holder’s compliance with state gambling laws and 
Commission rules at all times after receiving its gambling license.   
 
Allan Galanti is a substantial interest holder and owner of the Licensee.  On or about the period 
February 18, 2017 to March 12, 2017, Mr. Galanti is alleged to have wrongfully obtained control 
over the property of others by aid of deception.  Due to Mr. Galanti’s alleged unlawful conduct, 
he was charged in King County Superior Court in Case Number 17-C-03673-7 SEA, with one 
count of Theft in The Second Degree, a Class C Felony, and four counts of Theft in the Third 
Degree, Gross Misdemeanors.  On October 9, 2017, a Bench Warrant for Mr. Galanti’s arrest was 
issued in Case Number 17-C-03673-7 SEA.  The warrant is still active, and the case remains 
pending. 
 
Director Trujillo issued a Notice of Administrative Charges on October 26, 2018 to the Licensee 
by regular and certified mail to the last address the Gambling Commission had on file on 
November 8, 2018.  Pursuant to WAC Rule, a response was required to be received by the 
Commission by December 1, 2018.  The Commission received an untimely request for hearing on 
December 3, 2018—after the deadline for response.   
 
Gonzo’s LLC d/b/a Gonzo’s failure to respond to the charges or request a hearing is a waiver of 
Licensee’s right to a hearing in Case No. CR 2018-00871.  You may take final action against its 
gambling license.  Based on the conduct of its sole substantial interest holder, Gonzo’s LLC d/b/a 
Gonzo’s cannot show by clear and convincing evidence that it is qualified to keep its gambling 
license.  Therefore, staff recommends that the Commission sign the proposed final order and 



Default Hearing – Gonzo’s 
January 2, 2019 
Page 2 
 
revoke Gonzo’s LLC d/b/a Gonzo’s Punchboard/Pull-Tab Activity License, Number 05-20418. 



 

FINAL ORDER OF THE 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 
 
IN RE:  GONZO’S LLC D/B/A GONZO’S 
NO. 2018-00871 
 

1  
Washington State Gambling Commission 
4565 7th Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 98503 

P.O. Box 42400 
Olympia, WA 98504 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

STATE OF WASHINGTON 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 

 
In the Matter of: 
 
 
GONZO’S LLC d/b/a GONZO’S, 
License No. 05-20418 
                    

 
 

Licensee. 

NO.  CR 2018-00871 
            
 
FINAL ORDER OF THE 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 
 

 This matter having come before the Washington State Gambling Commission 

(Commission) on January 10, 2019, the Commission makes the following Findings of Fact, 

Conclusions of Law, and issues its Final Order: 

I. FINDINGS OF FACT 

1. The Washington State Gambling Commission issued Licensee Gonzo’s LLC 

d/b/a Gonzo’s License number: 05-20418, authorizing Punchboard/Pull-Tab activity in the State 

of Washington. 

2. This license, which expires on September 30, 2019, was issued subject to the 

licensee’s substantial interest holder’s compliance with state gambling laws and Commission 

rules at all times after receiving its gambling license.  

3. Allan Galanti is the 100 % owner and sole governing person of Gonzo’s LLC 

d/b/a Gonzo’s.  This makes him a substantial interest holder of the Licensee under WAC 230-

03-045. 



 

FINAL ORDER OF THE 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 
 
IN RE:  GONZO’S LLC D/B/A GONZO’S 
NO. 2018-00871 
 

2  
Washington State Gambling Commission 
4565 7th Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 98503 

P.O. Box 42400 
Olympia, WA 98504 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

 

4. On or about the period February 18, 2017 to March 12, 2017, Mr. Galanti is 

alleged to have wrongfully obtained control over the property of others by aid of deception. 

5. Due to Mr. Galanti’s alleged unlawful conduct, he was charged in King County 

Superior Court in Case Number 17-C-03673-7 SEA, with one count of Theft in the Second 

Degree, a Class C Felony, and four counts of Theft in the Third Degree, Gross Misdemeanors. 

6. On October 9, 2017, a Bench Warrant for Mr. Galanti’s arrest was issued in Case 

Number 17-C-03673-7 SEA.  The warrant is still active, and the case is still pending.   

7. Director David Trujillo issued administrative charges on October 26, 2018 

alleging that Mr. Galanti’s actions as the substantial interest holder of Licensee constituted 

violations of RCW 9A.56.040, RCW 9A.56.050, RCW 9.46.075, and WAC 230-03-085.  

Further, that he could not show by clear and convincing evidence that he was qualified for 

licensure as required by RCW 9.46.153(1), and that his actions warranted revocation of his 

license pursuant to RCW 9.46.075(1), (4), and (9), and WAC 230-03-085(1), (7), and (9)(a). 

8. Licensee was sent the charges by regular and certified mail on November 8, 2018, 

to the last address the Gambling Commission had on file.  Pursuant to WAC 230-17-010, a 

response was required to be received by the Commission by December 1, 2018.  The 

Commission received an untimely request for hearing on December 3, 2018-- after the deadline 

for response.   

II. CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

1. Licensee received proper notice of the October 26, 2018 charges by regular and 

certified mail on November 8, 2018 pursuant to RCW 34.05.434, RCW 34.05.431, and WAC 

10-08-130.   

2. The Commission can take final action against Licensee’s gambling license under 

Case Number CR 2018-00871 pursuant to RCW 9A.56.040, RCW 9A.56.050, RCW 9.46.075, 

RCW 34.05.440(1), RCW 34.05.461, and WAC 230-03-085. 



 

FINAL ORDER OF THE 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 
 
IN RE:  GONZO’S LLC D/B/A GONZO’S 
NO. 2018-00871 
 

3  
Washington State Gambling Commission 
4565 7th Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 98503 

P.O. Box 42400 
Olympia, WA 98504 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

 

3. Gonzo’s LLC d/b/a Gonzo’s license should be revoked under Case Number CR 

2018-00871 pursuant to RCW 9A.56.040, RCW 9A.56.050, RCW 9.46.075, RCW 9.46.153(1), 

RCW 34.05.440(1), RCW 34.05.461, and WAC 230-03-085. 

ORDER 

 This matter having come before the Commission at its January 10, 2018, Commission 

meeting, the Commissioners having heard arguments, been given the chance to review the 

administrative record, and being fully advised in this matter, now therefore: 

 It is hereby ORDERED that Gonzo’s LLC d/b/a Gonzo’s gambling license, Number 05-

20418, is REVOKED.  

 

DATED this _____ day of January, 2019. 
 
 
____________________________________ _________________________________ 
BUD SIZEMORE, Chair JULIA PATTERSON, Vice Chair 
 
 
____________________________________  __________________________________  
CHRISTOPHER STEARNS    ED TROYER 
 
 
____________________________________ 
ALICIA LEVY 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

FINAL ORDER OF THE 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 
 
IN RE:  GONZO’S LLC D/B/A GONZO’S 
NO. 2018-00871 
 

4  
Washington State Gambling Commission 
4565 7th Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 98503 

P.O. Box 42400 
Olympia, WA 98504 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

 

NOTICE 
 

Reconsideration: RCW 34.05.470 and WAC 230-17-140 provide that a party may file a 

petition for reconsideration of a final order. A petition for reconsideration must be received no 

later than thirteen (13) days after the date this final order is mailed.  Any motion for 

reconsideration must state the specific grounds supporting the party’s request for 

reconsideration.  

Stay of Final Order: Filing for reconsideration does not stay the effectiveness of this 

Order. WAC 230-17-145 provides that a party may petition the Commission for a stay of a final 

order.  Any petition for a stay should be received by the Commission within thirteen (13) days 

after the date this final order is mailed. 

Judicial Review: RCW 34.05.542 provides that a party may appeal this final order by 

filing a petition for judicial review within thirty (30) days after service of this order.  A petition 

for judicial review must be filed with the appropriate superior court and served upon both the 

Commission and the Office of the Attorney General. 

Service: This Order was served on you three days after it was deposited in the United 

States Postal Service regular mail, excluding the date of mailing. WAC 230-17-035. 

Any motions or petitions for judicial review should be served on or mailed to: 

Washington State Gambling Commission                     Gregory J. Rosen 
Legal and Records Division                                           Attorney General’s Office 
4565 7th Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA                                 1135 Washington St. SE  
P.O. Box 42400                                                              P.O. Box 40100 
Olympia, WA 98504-2400                                             Olympia, WA 98504-0100 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

FINAL ORDER OF THE 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 
 
IN RE:  GONZO’S LLC D/B/A GONZO’S 
NO. 2018-00871 
 

5  
Washington State Gambling Commission 
4565 7th Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 98503 

P.O. Box 42400 
Olympia, WA 98504 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

 I certify that on the date below I served a copy of the foregoing document on all parties 

and/or their counsel by United States Postal Service regular mail to the following: 
 
 
GONZO’S  
C/O ALLAN GALANTI 
15423 SE 272ND ST, STE 101 
KENT WA  98042 

 EXECUTED this ___ day of January, 2019, at Lacey, Washington. 
 
 
             
      Haylee Mills 
      Staff Attorney 
 



 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest” 

 
 
January 2, 2019 
 
 
TO:  COMMISSIONERS:  
  Bud Sizemore, Chair 
  Julia Patterson, Vice Chair 

Christopher Stearns 
Ed Troyer 
Alicia Levy 

 
FROM: Haylee P. Mills, Staff Attorney  
  Legal and Records Division 

 
SUBJECT:  Chang S. Kim, CR 2018-01376 
  Final Order – January 10, 2019 Commission Meeting 
 
Ms. Chang S. Kim has a gambling certification authorizing Class III Employee activity at the 
Nisqually Red Wind Casino in Olympia, Washington.  Her certification expires on March 9, 2019.   
 
On May 16, 2018, a patron of the Nisqually Red Wind Casino reported dropping $100 in $20 bills 
in the casino.  Video surveillance showed Ms. Kim, who was working as a custodial worker, pick 
up the money and attempt to conceal it.  Ms. Kim did not attempt to return the money or turn it in 
to security as required by casino policy.  As a result of the above allegations, Ms. Kim’s tribal 
gaming license was suspended by the Nisqually Tribal Gaming Commission on May 16, 2018, 
and revoked on May 31, 2018.  Ms. Kim’s employment was subsequently terminated. 
 
Director Trujillo issued Ms. Kim a Notice of Administrative Charges on November 14, 2018, by 
regular and certified mail to her last known address on file. Neither the regular nor certified mail 
was returned.  As of the date of this memo, the Commission has not received any response from 
Ms. Kim. 
 
Ms. Kim’s failure to respond to the charges or request a hearing is a waiver of Ms. Kim’s right to 
a hearing in Case No. CR 2018-01376.  You may take final action against her gambling 
certification.  Based on her conduct, Ms. Kim cannot show by clear and convincing evidence that 
she is qualified to keep her gambling certification.  Therefore, staff recommends that the 
Commission sign the proposed final order and revoke Chang S. Kim’s Class III Employee 
certification, Number 69-41620. 
 



 

FINAL ORDER OF THE 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 
 
IN RE:  CHANG S KIM 
NO. 2018-01376 
 

1  
Washington State Gambling Commission 
4565 7th Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 98503 

P.O. Box 42400 
Olympia, WA 98504 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

STATE OF WASHINGTON 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 

 
In the Matter of: 
 
 
CHANG S. KIM, 
License No. 69-41620 
                    
 

 
Class III Employee. 

NO.  CR 2018-01376 
            
 
FINAL ORDER OF THE 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 
 

 This matter having come before the Washington State Gambling Commission 

(Commission) on January 10, 2019, the Commission makes the following Findings of Fact, 

Conclusions of Law, and issues its Final Order: 

I. FINDINGS OF FACT 

1. The Washington State Gambling Commission issued Chang S. Kim Certification 

No.: 69-41620, authorizing Class III Employee activity at the Nisqually Red Wind Casino in 

Olympia, Washington. 

2. This certification, which expires on March 9, 2019, was issued subject to Ms. 

Kim’s compliance with state gambling laws and Commission rules, in accordance with the 

Nisqually Tribal-State Gaming Compact.  

3. On May 16, 2018, a patron of the Nisqually Red Wind Casino reported dropping 

$100 in $20 bills in the casino. 

4. Video surveillance showed Ms. Kim, who was working as a custodial worker, 

pick up the money and attempt to conceal it. 



 

FINAL ORDER OF THE 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 
 
IN RE:  CHANG S KIM 
NO. 2018-01376 
 

2  
Washington State Gambling Commission 
4565 7th Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 98503 

P.O. Box 42400 
Olympia, WA 98504 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

 

5. Ms. Kim did not attempt to return the money or turn it in to security as required 

by casino policy.   

6. Based on the above allegations, Ms. Kim’s tribal gaming license was suspended 

by the Nisqually Tribal Gaming Commission on May 16, 2018, and revoked on May 31, 2018.  

7. Director David Trujillo issued administrative charges on November 9, 2018 

alleging that Ms. Kim’s actions constituted bases for revocation in RCW 9.46.075 and WAC 

230-03-085.  Further, that she could not show by clear and convincing evidence that she was 

qualified for licensure as required by RCW 9.46.153(1), and that her actions warranted 

revocation of her license pursuant to RCW 9.46.075(1) and (8), and WAC 230-03-085(1) and 

(9)(a), and in accordance with Section V.C.(1) and (3) of the Nisqually Tribal-State Gaming 

Compact. 

8. Ms. Kim was sent the charges by regular and certified mail on November 14, 

2018 to the last address the Gambling Commission had on file.  Neither the regular nor the 

certified mail was returned.   

9. To date, the Commission has received no communication from Ms. Kim.  

II. CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

1. Ms. Chang S. Kim received proper notice of the November 9, 2018 charges via 

regular and certified mail on November 14, 2018 pursuant to RCW 34.05.434, RCW 34.05.431, 

and WAC 10-08-130.   

2. The Commission can take final action against Ms. Kim’s gambling certification 

under Case Number CR 2018-01376 pursuant to RCW 9.46.075, RCW 34.05.440(1), RCW 

34.05.461, and WAC 230-03-085. 

3. Ms. Kim’s certification should be revoked under Case Number CR 2018-01376 

pursuant to RCW 9.46.075, RCW 9.46.153(1), RCW 34.05.440(1), RCW 34.05.461, and WAC 

230-03-085. 

 



 

FINAL ORDER OF THE 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 
 
IN RE:  CHANG S KIM 
NO. 2018-01376 
 

3  
Washington State Gambling Commission 
4565 7th Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 98503 

P.O. Box 42400 
Olympia, WA 98504 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

 

ORDER 

 This matter having come before the Commission at its January 10, 2019, Commission 

meeting, the Commissioners having heard arguments, been given the chance to review the 

administrative record, and being fully advised in this matter, now therefore: 

 It is hereby ORDERED that Chang S. Kim’s gambling certification, Number 69-41620, 

is REVOKED.  

 

DATED this _____ day of January, 2019. 
 
 
____________________________________ _________________________________ 
BUD SIZEMORE, Chair JULIA PATTERSON, Vice Chair 
 
 
____________________________________  __________________________________  
CHRISTOPHER STEARNS    ED TROYER 
 
 
____________________________________ 
ALICIA LEVY 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

FINAL ORDER OF THE 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 
 
IN RE:  CHANG S KIM 
NO. 2018-01376 
 

4  
Washington State Gambling Commission 
4565 7th Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 98503 

P.O. Box 42400 
Olympia, WA 98504 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

 

NOTICE 
 

Reconsideration: RCW 34.05.470 and WAC 230-17-140 provide that a party may file a 

petition for reconsideration of a final order. A petition for reconsideration must be received no 

later than thirteen (13) days after the date this final order is mailed.  Any motion for 

reconsideration must state the specific grounds supporting the party’s request for 

reconsideration.  

Stay of Final Order: Filing for reconsideration does not stay the effectiveness of this 

Order. WAC 230-17-145 provides that a party may petition the Commission for a stay of a final 

order.  Any petition for a stay should be received by the Commission within thirteen (13) days 

after the date this final order is mailed. 

Judicial Review: RCW 34.05.542 provides that a party may appeal this final order by 

filing a petition for judicial review within thirty (30) days after service of this order.  A petition 

for judicial review must be filed with the appropriate superior court and served upon both the 

Commission and the Office of the Attorney General. 

Service: This Order was served on you three days after it was deposited in the United 

States Postal Service regular mail, excluding the date of mailing. WAC 230-17-035. 

Any motions or petitions for judicial review should be served on or mailed to: 

Washington State Gambling Commission                     Gregory J. Rosen 
Legal and Records Division                                           Attorney General’s Office 
4565 7th Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA                                 1135 Washington St. SE  
P.O. Box 42400                                                              P.O. Box 40100 
Olympia, WA 98504-2400                                             Olympia, WA 98504-0100 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

FINAL ORDER OF THE 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 
 
IN RE:  CHANG S KIM 
NO. 2018-01376 
 

5  
Washington State Gambling Commission 
4565 7th Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 98503 

P.O. Box 42400 
Olympia, WA 98504 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

 I certify that on the date below I served a copy of the foregoing document on all parties 

and/or their counsel by United States Postal Service regular mail to the following: 
 
 
CHANG S. KIM 
20005 12TH AVE E 
SPANAWAY WA  98387 

 EXECUTED this ___ day of January, 2019, at Lacey, Washington. 
 
 
             
      Haylee Mills 
      Staff Attorney 
 



 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest” 

 
 
January 2, 2019 
 
 
TO:  COMMISSIONERS:  
  Bud Sizemore, Chair 
  Julia Patterson, Vice Chair 

Christopher Stearns 
Ed Troyer 
Alicia Levy 

 
FROM: Haylee P. Mills, Staff Attorney  
  Legal and Records Division 

 
SUBJECT:  Lia B. Vanderpol, CR 2018-00821 
  Final Order – January 10, 2019 Commission Meeting 
 
Ms. Lia B. Vanderpol has a gambling license authorizing Public Card Room Employee activity at 
Slo Pitch Sports Grill and Casino in Bellingham, Washington.  Her license expires on May 5, 2019.   
 
On May 12, 2018, Ms. Vanderpol was working as a dealer at Slo Pitch Sports Grill and Casino 
when a customer accidentally dropped a $100 black chip on the floor.  Video surveillance showed 
Ms. Vanderpol step on the chip while others looked for it, and eventually pick it up and put it in 
her pocket.  After she was confronted by the general manager, Ms. Vanderpol admitted to taking 
the chip.  Her employment was terminated based on her actions.  When interviewed by a Gambling 
Commission special agent, Ms. Vanderpol again admitted to taking the chip.  
 
Director Trujillo issued Ms. Vanderpol a Notice of Administrative Charges on November 14, 
2018, by regular and certified mail to her last known address on file. Neither the regular nor 
certified mail was returned.  As of the date of this memo, the Commission has not received any 
response from Ms. Vanderpol. 
 
Ms. Vanderpol’s failure to respond to the charges or request a hearing is a waiver of Ms. 
Vanderpol’s right to a hearing in Case No. CR 2018-00821.  You may take final action against her 
gambling license.  Based on her conduct, Ms. Vanderpol cannot show by clear and convincing 
evidence that she is qualified to keep her gambling license.  Therefore, staff recommends that the 
Commission sign the proposed final order and revoke Lia B. Vanderpol’s Public Card Room 
Employee license, Number 68-34209. 
 



 

FINAL ORDER OF THE 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 
 
IN RE:  LIA B. VANDERPOL 
NO. 2018-00821 
 

1  
Washington State Gambling Commission 
4565 7th Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 98503 

P.O. Box 42400 
Olympia, WA 98504 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

STATE OF WASHINGTON 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 

 
In the Matter of: 
 
 
LIA B. VANDERPOL, 
License No. 68-34209 
                    
 

 
Licensee. 

NO.  CR 2018-00821 
            
 
FINAL ORDER OF THE 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 
 

 This matter having come before the Washington State Gambling Commission 

(Commission) on January 10, 2019, the Commission makes the following Findings of Fact, 

Conclusions of Law, and issues its Final Order: 

I. FINDINGS OF FACT 

1. The Washington State Gambling Commission issued Lia B. Vanderpol License 

No.: 68-34209, authorizing Public Card Room activity at the Slo Pitch Sports Grill and Casino 

in Bellingham, Washington. 

2. This license, which expires on May 5, 2019, was issued subject to Ms. 

Vanderpol’s compliance with state gambling laws and Commission rules.  

3. On May 12, 2018, Ms. Vanderpol was working as a dealer at Slo Pitch Sports 

Grill and Casino when a customer accidentally dropped a $100 black chip on the floor.   

4. Video surveillance showed that Ms. Vanderpol stepped on the chip while others 

looked for it and eventually picked the chip up and put it in her pocket.  

5. After she was confronted by the general manager of the casino, Ms. Vanderpol 

admitted to taking the chip. 



 

FINAL ORDER OF THE 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 
 
IN RE:  LIA B. VANDERPOL 
NO. 2018-00821 
 

2  
Washington State Gambling Commission 
4565 7th Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 98503 

P.O. Box 42400 
Olympia, WA 98504 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

 

6. Based on the above actions, Ms. Vanderpol’s employment was terminated.  

7. When interviewed by a Gambling Commission special agent, Ms. Vanderpol 

again admitted to taking the chip. 

8. Director David Trujillo issued administrative charges on November 9, 2018 

alleging that Ms. Vanderpol’s actions constituted a violation of RCW 9A.56.050.  Further, that 

she could not show by clear and convincing evidence that she was qualified for licensure as 

required by RCW 9.46.153(1), and that her actions warranted revocation of her license pursuant 

to RCW 9.46.075(1) and (8), and WAC 230-03-085(1), (3), and (9)(a). 

9. Ms. Vanderpol was sent the charges by regular and certified mail on November 

14, 2018 to the last address the Gambling Commission had on file.  Neither the regular nor the 

certified mail was returned.   

10. To date, the Commission has received no communication from Ms. Vanderpol.  

II. CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

1. Ms. Lia B. Vanderpol received proper notice of the November 9, 2018 charges 

via regular and certified mail on November 14, 2018 pursuant to RCW 34.05.434, RCW 

34.05.431, and WAC 10-08-130.   

2. The Commission can take final action against Ms. Vanderpol’s gambling license 

under Case Number CR 2018-00821 pursuant to RCW 9.46.075, RCW 34.05.440(1), RCW 

34.05.461, and WAC 230-03-085. 

3. Ms. Vanderpol’s license should be revoked under Case Number CR 2018-00821 

pursuant to RCW 9.46.075, RCW 9A.56.050, RCW 9.46.153(1), RCW 34.05.440(1), RCW 

34.05.461, and WAC 230-03-085. 

ORDER 

 This matter having come before the Commission at its January 10, 2019, Commission 

meeting, the Commissioners having heard arguments, been given the chance to review the 

administrative record, and being fully advised in this matter, now therefore: 



 

FINAL ORDER OF THE 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 
 
IN RE:  LIA B. VANDERPOL 
NO. 2018-00821 
 

3  
Washington State Gambling Commission 
4565 7th Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 98503 

P.O. Box 42400 
Olympia, WA 98504 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

 

 It is hereby ORDERED that Lia B. Vanderpol’s gambling license, Number 68-34209, is 

REVOKED.  

 

DATED this _____ day of January, 2019. 
 
 
____________________________________ _________________________________ 
BUD SIZEMORE, Chair JULIA PATTERSON, Vice Chair 
 
 
____________________________________  __________________________________  
CHRISTOPHER STEARNS    ED TROYER 
 
 
____________________________________ 
ALICIA LEVY 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

FINAL ORDER OF THE 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 
 
IN RE:  LIA B. VANDERPOL 
NO. 2018-00821 
 

4  
Washington State Gambling Commission 
4565 7th Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 98503 

P.O. Box 42400 
Olympia, WA 98504 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

 

NOTICE 
 

Reconsideration: RCW 34.05.470 and WAC 230-17-140 provide that a party may file a 

petition for reconsideration of a final order. A petition for reconsideration must be received no 

later than thirteen (13) days after the date this final order is mailed.  Any motion for 

reconsideration must state the specific grounds supporting the party’s request for 

reconsideration.  

Stay of Final Order: Filing for reconsideration does not stay the effectiveness of this 

Order. WAC 230-17-145 provides that a party may petition the Commission for a stay of a final 

order.  Any petition for a stay should be received by the Commission within thirteen (13) days 

after the date this final order is mailed. 

Judicial Review: RCW 34.05.542 provides that a party may appeal this final order by 

filing a petition for judicial review within thirty (30) days after service of this order.  A petition 

for judicial review must be filed with the appropriate superior court and served upon both the 

Commission and the Office of the Attorney General. 

Service: This Order was served on you three days after it was deposited in the United 

States Postal Service regular mail, excluding the date of mailing. WAC 230-17-035. 

Any motions or petitions for judicial review should be served on or mailed to: 

Washington State Gambling Commission                     Gregory J. Rosen 
Legal and Records Division                                           Attorney General’s Office 
4565 7th Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA                                 1135 Washington St. SE  
P.O. Box 42400                                                              P.O. Box 40100 
Olympia, WA 98504-2400                                             Olympia, WA 98504-0100 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

FINAL ORDER OF THE 
GAMBLING COMMISSION 
 
IN RE:  LIA B. VANDERPOL 
NO. 2018-00821 
 

5  
Washington State Gambling Commission 
4565 7th Avenue S.E., Lacey, WA 98503 

P.O. Box 42400 
Olympia, WA 98504 

 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

 I certify that on the date below I served a copy of the foregoing document on all parties 

and/or their counsel by United States Postal Service regular mail to the following: 
 
 
LIA B. VANDERPOL 
1853 KOK ROAD 
BELLINGHAM, WA  98264 

 EXECUTED this ___ day of January, 2019, at Lacey, Washington. 
 
 
             
      Haylee Mills 
      Staff Attorney 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tab 6: JANUARY, 2019 Commission Meeting Agenda.                                     Statutory Authority 9.46.070  
 

Who Proposed the Rule Change? 

Washington State Gambling Commission Staff 

Background 

RCW 9.46.215 states that the possession or transportation of gambling equipment is illegal, unless it is in 
the furtherance of a gambling activity authorized by RCW or Commission rule. WAC 230-12-337, now 
WAC 230-16-005, was adopted and became effective in July, 2006, allowing licensed manufacturers and 
distributors to transport, display, and take orders for authorized gambling equipment at trade shows and 
conventions. 

In 2018, there was a request to transport and display unapproved tribal lottery system machines at a 
Washington Indian Gaming Association tradeshow. Staff denied the request because the machines had 
not been tested in and approved by the Electronic Gaming Lab. Other instances have arose where 
manufacturers and/or distributors possessed gambling equipment, not yet approved by the Electronic 
Gaming Lab, in warehouses, which may be considered an unauthorized gambling activity.   

Reason for the Rule Change 

Clarification is needed as to what types of gambling devices can be displayed at trade shows. Specifically: 

- Can devices that have not been approved by Washington State Gambling Commission but would 
be used for authorized gambling activities be displayed at tradeshows? 

- Can devices used for unauthorized activities be displayed at tradeshows? 

Attachments: 

• WAC 230-16-005 
• Email from Marcus Prater, AGEM 

Policy Considerations 

Whether or not to clarify other concerns related to transportation, possession, and storage of gambling 
devices.  

Stakeholder Feedback 
Marcus Prater, AGEM, sent an email in support of updating the rule for tradeshows. 

Staff Recommendation 

Staff recommends filing initial rule-making to clarify rules regarding where gambling equipment can be 
stored and displayed in Washington. 

 
Rule Petition to Amend  

WAC 230-16-005 Transporting, displaying, and selling gambling equipment 
at trade shows and conventions. 

 
 

January, 2019 – Discussion and Possible Filing 



WAC 230-16-005 

Transporting, displaying, and selling gambling equipment at trade shows and 
conventions. 

Licensed manufacturers and distributors selling gambling equipment authorized by state or 
federal law may transport, display, and accept orders for the sale or lease of their products at trade 
shows and conventions as long as: 

(1) They notify us in writing of the nature, date, and location ten days before the trade show or 
convention; and 

(2) Their target audience of the trade show or convention are operators of authorized gambling 
activities in Washington; and 

(3) They deliver all gambling equipment purchased or leased at the trade show or convention to 
the operator's authorized location. 
 



From: Marcus Prater
To: Laydon, Ashlie (GMB)
Subject: RE: Tradeshow Discussion; January 10th
Date: Sunday, December 30, 2018 2:03:27 PM

The Association of Gaming Equipment Manufacturers (AGEM) would like to submit the following
as part of the public comment process:
 
“The Association of Gaming Equipment Manufacturers (AGEM), which represents all of the leading
slot machine and table game companies in the world and has 166 member companies from 22
countries, respectfully asks the Washington State Gambling Commission to update its rules to allow
suppliers to exhibit products in Washington that have not received final lab approvals. Trade show
environments in particular should allow for the latest games and technology to be displayed so that
the Washington market remains vibrant and strong and operators, and ultimately players, have as
many choices as possible to select from. As evidenced by trade shows in gaming markets around the
world, there is no downside to allowing this, and regulatory safeguards in Washington and all
gaming markets ensure unapproved software, slots, tables or other technology will never make it to
the live gaming floor. Thank you for your consideration and we look forward to working with you
on this effort going forward.”
 
MARCUS PRATER
Executive Director
Association of Gaming Equipment Manufacturers (AGEM)
E-mail - AGEM.org@cox.net
Phone - (702) 812-6932
Web - www.AGEM.org
 
From: Laydon, Ashlie (GMB) [mailto:ashlie.laydon@wsgc.wa.gov] 
Sent: Friday, December 21, 2018 2:46 PM
To: 'Marcus Prater'
Subject: RE: Tradeshow Discussion; January 10th
 
They will.
 

From: Marcus Prater <agem.org@cox.net> 
Sent: Friday, December 21, 2018 2:45 PM
To: Laydon, Ashlie (GMB) <ashlie.laydon@wsgc.wa.gov>
Subject: RE: Tradeshow Discussion; January 10th
 
Thank you for this update. Will the comments submitted via email in advance of the meeting be
entered into the record as part of the public comment process? In other words, if we don’t have
someone there in person, will our comments count along with those there in person? Thanks
 
MARCUS PRATER
Executive Director
Association of Gaming Equipment Manufacturers (AGEM)
E-mail - AGEM.org@cox.net
Phone - (702) 812-6932
Web - www.AGEM.org
 
From: Laydon, Ashlie (GMB) [mailto:ashlie.laydon@wsgc.wa.gov] 
Sent: Friday, December 21, 2018 2:05 PM

mailto:agem.org@cox.net
mailto:ashlie.laydon@wsgc.wa.gov
mailto:AGEM.org@cox.net
http://www.agem.org/
mailto:AGEM.org@cox.net
http://www.agem.org/
mailto:ashlie.laydon@wsgc.wa.gov


To: 'Little, Dan'; 'agem.org@cox.net'; 'rebecca@washingtonindiangaming.org'
Cc: Considine, Brian (GMB)
Subject: Tradeshow Discussion; January 10th
 
Good afternoon,
 
I wanted to let you know that we’ll be discussing the need for clarification of  WAC 230-16-005-
Transporting, displaying, and selling gambling equipment at trade shows and conventions- at the
January Commission Meeting. You are welcome to attend (details below). There will be an
opportunity for public comment. If you’d like to submit materials to the Commission for their

consideration, please email them to me by January 2nd. Please feel free to pass this information on
to those on the call last month.
 
January Commission Meeting
 
Date:                     January 10, 2019 @ 9am PST
Location:              Hampton Inn & Suites

4301 Martin Way E.
Olympia, WA 98516

 
Please contact me if you have any questions. Thank you and have a great holiday!
 
Ashlie Laydon
Rules Coordinator
Legal and Records Division
Washington State Gambling Commission
(360) 486-3473
ashlie.laydon@wsgc.wa.gov
 

https://app.leg.wa.gov/WAC/default.aspx?cite=230-16-005
mailto:ashlie.laydon@wsgc.wa.gov


 

 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest” 

 
 
December 28, 2018 
 
 
 
TO:          COMMISSIONERS    EX OFFICIO MEMBERS  
         Bud Sizemore, Chair     Senator Steve Conway  
  Julia Patterson, Vice-Chair    Senator Lynda Wilson 
   Christopher Stearns    Representative Brandon Vick 
   Ed Troyer 
   Alicia Levy      
      
FROM:        Brian J. Considine, Managing Attorney/Legislative Liaison  
 
SUBJECT:  LEGISLATIVE UPDATE   
 
The regular 105-day session is scheduled to begin on Monday, January 14, 2019. The Democrats 
will have larger majorities in the House and the Senate in 2019, and there have been some changes 
made to the legislative committees.  
 
The Senate Labor and Commerce Committee has reduced the members on the committee from 
nine to seven.  The Committee will continued to be chaired by Senator Keiser (D-Kent), but our 
ex officio Senator Conway is the committee’s new Vice Chair. Additionally, the other members 
of the Committee are: Curtis King (Ranking Minority, R-Yakima); John Braun (R-Centralia); 
Rebecca Saldaña (D-Seattle); Maureen Walsh (R-Walla Walla); and Lisa Wellman (D-Mercer 
Island).  Senators Wellman and Walsh are new members to the committee this year, and ex officio 
Senator Wilson is no longer on the Committee. 
 
The House Commerce and Gaming Committee has increased the members on the committee from 
nine to eleven.  The Committee members are: Derek Stanford (Chair, D-Bothell); Kristine Reeves 
(Vice Chair, D-Federal Way); Drew MacEwen (Ranking, R-Union); Kelly Chambers (Assistant 
Ranking, R-Puyallup); Brian Blake (D-Aberdeen); Bill Jenkin (R-Prosser); Steve Kirby (D-
Tacoma); Shelley Kloba (D-Kirkland); Melanie Morgan (D-Tacoma); Brandon Vick (R-
Vancouver); and Jesse Young (R- Gig Harbor). 
 
I continue to review pre-filed bills for the 2019 session and will brief you on any pre-filed gambling 
or other important bills at our January meeting.  I will also review our process for considering bills 
that you may want to take a position on during the 2019 legislative session.   


	January Meeting agenda
	Tab 1 Nov. Minutes
	Tab 1 License Report
	Tab 1 Sports Gambling Monthly Update 
	Tab 2 Numerica
	Tab 3 Seattle Jr Hockey
	Tab 4 G2E Presentation
	Tab 5 Defaults
	Tab 6 Trade Show Petition
	Tab 7 Legislative Update



